
External: This Email is from an external sender. Be alert for Phishing. Do not click links if you do not know the sender.

From: Honorable Pascale St-Onge
To: Tyler Gandam
Cc: ministerofisi-ministredeisi
Subject: Reply from the Ministerial Correspondence Secretariat, in response to your correspondence, addressed to the Honourable Pascale St-Onge, Minister

of Canadian Heritage
Date: November 15, 2023 7:09:28 AM
Attachments: image003.png

CM2023-03460 - Incoming email from Tyler Gandam.pdf
CM2023-03460 - Incoming letter from Tyler Gandam.pdf

You don't often get email from hon.pascale.st-onge@pch.gc.ca. Learn why this is important

 
 
Dear Mr. Gandam:
 
I am writing in response to your correspondence, addressed to the Honourable Pascale St-
Onge, Minister of Canadian Heritage, regarding the reliability of cellular network coverage for
mobile wireless service in Alberta’s urban municipalities.
 
The Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (CRTC) is the
independent public authority responsible for the regulation and supervision of the Canadian
broadcasting and telecommunications system. It derives its regulatory authority from the
application of the Broadcasting Act, which falls under the purview of the Department of
Canadian Heritage, and the Telecommunications Act, which falls under the purview of
Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada,
and is best placed to deal with the issue that you raised.
 
Please be assured that your correspondence has been forwarded to the CRTC Support Centre.
Should you wish to follow up with the Commission, I invite you to contact the CRTC Support
Centre by using the contact information provided below.
 
In addition, since the subject that you raised is a telecommunications issue, I have taken the
liberty of forwarding your correspondence to the Honourable François-Philippe Champagne,
Minister of Innovation, Science and Industry, for his information.
 
Please accept my best wishes.
 
 
Sincerely,
 

Stéphanie Powers
A/Director
Ministerial Correspondence Secretariat
 
 
Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission
 
CRTC Support Centre
Ottawa, Ontario
K1A 0N2
 
Telephone: 1-877-249-2782
Website: crtc.gc.ca/eng/contact
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Honorable Pascale St-Onge


De: Tyler Gandam <president@abmunis.ca>
Envoyé: 1 novembre 2023 18:58
À: Honorable Pascale St-Onge
Objet: CM2023-03460 - REF TO ISED - Letter from Alberta Municipalities
Pièces jointes: Ltr to Min Canadian Heritage re ABmunis 2023 Resolutions.pdf


Catégories: JR


Good evening,  
 
Please find attached letter.  
 
Thank you,  
 
 
Tyler Gandam    | President
  


E: president@abmunis.ca
 


300-8616 51 Ave  Edmonton, AB   T6E 6E6
 


Toll Free: 310-MUNI | 877-421-
6644 | www.abmunis.ca 


    


Pour protéger votre v ie privée, Microsoft Office a empêché le téléchargement automatique de cette image depuis Internet.


 


  
   


This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender. This message contains confidential information and is 
intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee, you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email. 
  


We respectfully acknowledge that we live, work, and play on the traditional  
and ancestral territories of many Indigenous, First Nations, Métis, and Inuit peoples.  
We acknowledge that what we call Alberta is the traditional and ancestral territory of many peoples, 
presently subject to Treaties 4, 6, 7, 8 and 10 and Six Regions of the Métis Nation of Alberta. 
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November 1, 2023 
 
Honourable Pascale St-Onge 
Minister of Canadian Heritage 
15 Eddy Street, 12th Floor 
Gatineau, Quebec 
J8X 4B3 
 
Dear Minister St-Onge: 
 
Founded in 1905, Alberta Municipalities is a solutions-based membership organization that provides 
a unified voice for Alberta’s urban municipalities, including cities, towns, villages, summer villages, 
and specialized municipalities that represent 86 percent of Alberta’s population.  Every year, Alberta 
Municipalities members have the opportunity to submit resolutions on issues of importance to them. 
These resolutions are then debated and voted on at our fall Convention by hundreds of mayors and 
councilors from our member municipalities.  
 
Adopted resolutions remain active for three years and highlight the priorities of Alberta’s municipal 
leaders. In some instances, these resolutions call for action or support from the Government of 
Canada to help meet current needs or to help set local communities up for future success. 
 
Alberta’s municipal leaders ask that you review and respond to the enclosed 2023 resolution that 
pertains to your Ministry on Access to Mobile Wireless (Cellular) Services.  
 
In recent years, there has been notable progress in the realm of broadband infrastructure 
development. However, it is imperative to acknowledge that cellular connectivity remains a 
prominent and persistent concern for a substantial portion of the Alberta population. As we move 
forward, we are committed to nurturing and enhancing our ongoing partnership, with a focus on 
bolstering our collective endeavors aimed at resolving this critical issue. 
 
If you wish to review the resolutions pertaining to other ministries, they can be found on our website 
at: https://www.abmunis.ca/advocacy-resources/resolutions/resolutions-library. If you have any 
questions about ABmunis, our resolutions, or our advocacy, I invite you to contact me by email at 
president@abmunis.ca or on my cell phone at (780) 312-0660. 
 
We look forward to your consideration of and response to this resolution. 
 
Sincerely,  


 
 
 


Tyler Gandam 
President, Alberta Municipalities 
 
Enclosure 
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CC: Honourable Nate Glubish, Minister of Technology and Innovation, Government of Alberta 


ABmunis Resolution 2023-C5 


Access to Mobile Wireless (Cellular) Services 
 
Moved by:  Alberta Municipalities Board of Directors  
Seconded by:  Not applicable 
 
WHEREAS Albertans rely on mobile wireless (cellular) services to conduct business activities, for 
personal use, and in emergency situations; 
 
WHEREAS the Telecommunications Act affirms that the Canadian telecommunications policy has an 
objective “to render reliable and affordable telecommunications services of high quality accessible to 
Canadians in both urban and rural regions in all regions of Canada”;  
 
WHEREAS the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (CRTC) made access 
to mobile wireless voice and internet services part of a nation-wide service objective for 
telecommunications services in 2016;  
 
WHEREAS the CRTC has a target of 100% of all Canadian households having access to the latest 
generally deployed mobile wireless technology (currently defined as long-term evolution [LTE]) by 
December 2026; and 
 
WHEREAS despite CRTC reporting that more than 99% of all Albertans have access to cellular 
services, many Albertans outside of major urban centres do not have access to reliable cellular 
network coverage; and 
 
WHEREAS access to landlines and high-speed internet is challenging in rural and remote areas which 
further increases the importance of reliable mobile wireless (cellular) services; 
 
IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT Alberta Municipalities engage the Canadian Radio-television and 
Telecommunications Commission to address the lack of reliable cellular network coverage for mobile 
wireless (cellular) service.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This resolution was adopted at the Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) Spring 2023 
Conference. Alberta Municipalities Board recognizes that many of our members also experience 
challenges with access to wireless internet and there is an opportunity for ABmunis and RMA to 
collaborate in advocating for improved coverage.  
 
There are several telecommunications providers offering mobile wireless voice and internet 
services.  Despite telecommunications providers offering services, there are areas throughout the 
province that do not have reliable cellular network coverage. 
 
The lack of reliable cellular network coverage is experienced by residents and businesses in 
remote municipalities that are at a distance from the higher populated urban centers. 
 
Residents and business owners alike have raised concerns about their ability to operate their 
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businesses due to challenges with telecommunications. Today many residents and businesses in 
rural Alberta are not being serviced by landlines or being refused service. Therefore, reliance on 
mobile wireless (cellular) services becomes their only option. However, when a business must rely 
on high spots on the property to receive and send cellular calls it makes it difficult for business 
owners to operate and grow their business.  
 
Even more importantly, emergency situations require reliable cellular network coverage. Rural 
and remote areas are at risk of emergency situations becoming critical when there is no access 
to 911. 
 
The CRTC provides reports on “Major Roads With & Without LTE Services” that support cellular 
networks. Most major roads in Alberta are identified by the CRTC as having LTE service. However, 
the data does not accurately reflect the reliability of the service. For example, Highway 18 is 
marked as having LTE service, however there is a location between Barrhead and Westlock with 
no cellular access or a dead spot. The same is true on Highway 33 between areas heading west 
to Swan Hills and south to Edmonton (marked in yellow on map below). 
 
Source: https://crtc.gc.ca/cartovista/RoadsWithAndWithoutLTE_En/index.html 
 
CRT also reports on “LTE Service Coverage Areas.” The area encompassing the County of 
Barrhead is shown as fully covered by two facility-based networks, however there are several 
areas within the County of Barrhead that are three-digit highways and local roads that do not 
have reliable coverage and experience dead spots. According to the map, the Village of Heisler 
also does not have LTE service along Highway 855. These dead spots occur from no coverage by 
service providers, no cellular signal or lack of towers. 
 
Source: https://crtc.gc.ca/cartovista/LTEProviderCountYE2019_EN/index.html 
 
CRTC reports do not reflect the reality on the ground in rural and remote Alberta with respect to 
mobile wireless (cellular) services. As a result, the lack of attention and investment leaves rural 
Alberta underserved which limits economic growth from many perspectives and potentially 
increases risk to life and property by negatively impacting emergency response. 
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